شرح المحاضرة الثالثة عشر 
Relative Clauses
Relative Clauses :
In Lecture 12, we discussed subordination and the types of subordinate clauses. We talked in detail about the first type of subordinate clauses: noun clauses. In this lecture, we will cover other types of subordinate clauses in more detail.
الجمل النسبيّة:
في المحاضرة  الثانية عشر؛ ناقشنا التبعيّه و أنواع الجمل التبعيّه.                                                                                                 تحدثنا بالتفصيل عن النوع الأول للجمل التبعيّه : الجمل الاسمية.                                                                                                      في هذه المحاضرة؛ سنغطي الأنواع الأخرى للجمل التبعيّه بتفصيل أكثر .
2. Relative Clauses
A relative clause is a clause which mainly modifies a noun phrase. It usually begins with a relative pronoun: “who”, “whom”, “whose”, “which” and “that”.
e.g.   1.  The car which he owns is very old.
(The car is very old. He owns the car.)
Sometimes the relative pronoun can be deleted (zero relative pronoun), but it still exists as a grammatical position in the clause.
e.g.    2.  The car he owns is very old.
In example 1, the relative pronoun “which” is the object of the verb “owns”. Similarly, in example 2, the zero relative pronoun is the object of the verb “owns”.
تابع أنواع الجمل التبعيّه :
2-الجمل النسبيّه:
هي الجمل التي تعدل بشكل أساسي العبارة الاسمية .                                                                                                                   عادةً تبدأ هذه الجمل بالضمائر النسبية التالية: who, whom, whose, which, that  كل من هذه الضمائر لديه استخدام خاص سنتحدث عنه بعد قليل. 
مثال1/ The car which he owns is very old
which he owns < هي جملة تبعيّة نوعها فقرة نسبيّة و الضمير النسبيّ المستخدم هنا هو (which) و هذه الجملة وظيفتها هي معدّلة للمبتدأ (car)، فهي أعطتنا معلومات إضافية و الضمير (which) هو مفعول للفعل (owns) .
* في بعض الأحيان الضمير النسبيّ قد يحذف و يدعى بـ(zero relative pronoun)، ولكن يبقى موجوداً كموضع نحوي في الجملة.


مثال2/ The car he owns is very old
he owns < هي جملة تبعيّة نوعها جملة نسبيّة و الضمير النسبيّ فيها يدعى (zero relative pronoun) و الضمير النسبيّ هنا هو مفعول للفعل " owns".
The relative pronoun points back to the head of the noun phrase modified by the relative clause. The head of the NP is called the antecedent of the relative pronoun.
e.g.    The man who called us yesterday has come to meet you. (the pronoun “who” points back to the head of the NP “man”. “Man” in this sentence is called an antecedent.)
*الآن سنتحدث عن الـ (antecedent-العنصر المتقدم) للضمائر النسبية:
-الضمير النسبي يشير إلى الرأس للعبارة الاسمية التي عُدِّلَت من خلال الفقرة النسبيّة.
-الرأس للعبارة الاسمية تدعى(الرأس المتقدم-  antecedent) للضمير النسبي.
مثال/ The man who called us yesterday has come to meet you 
The man < عبارة اسمية و وظيفتها فاعل .
man < هو الرأس للعبارة الاسمية (The man) وهو ( رأس متقدم-  antecedent) للضمير النسبي (who).
who called us yesterday < هي جملة اسمية ووظيفتها معدِّلة للفاعل (man).
who < ضمير نسبي و العنصر المتقدم له هو " man"، إذاَ (who) يشير إلى الرأس " man".
• The Use of Relative Pronouns:
A. Personal Relative Pronouns
The personal relative pronouns “who” and “whom” are used with human antecedents.
e.g.   1. There is a man outside who wants to see you. (There is a man outside. The man wants to see you.)
e.g.   2. Ahmed, who/whom I told you about yesterday, is here. (Ahmed is here. I told you about Ahmed yesterday.)
*كما قلنا: العديد من الضمائر النسبية يمكن أن تُستَخدم مع العديد من (العناصر المتقدمة – antecedents) مع العديد من العبارات الاسمية:
أ- الضمائر النسبيّة الشخصية:
who) - whom) هي ضمائر تستخدم مع (العناصر المتقدمة التي تشير إلى الإنسان- human antecedents).


مثال1/ There is a man outside who wants to see you
who > يعود على "man" و"man" هو عنصر متقدم يشير إلى الإنسان ،                                                                                           و يمكن فصل هذه الجملة لتصبح : There is a man outside. The man wants to see you
مثال2/ Ahmed, who/whom I told you about yesterday, is here
who/whom > يعودا على "Ahmed" وهما عنصران متقدمان يشيران إلى الإنسان ،                                                                                           و يمكن فصل هذه الجملة لتصبح : Ahmed is here. I told you about Ahmed yesterday
* Ahmed, who/whom I told you about yesterday, is here
هنا كلمة (Ahmed) جاء فاعل في الجملة المعقدة .
* Ahmed is here. I told you about Ahmed yesterday
هنا كلمة (Ahmed) جاء مفعول به في الجملة المنفصلة.
B. Non-Personal Relative Pronouns
The non-personal relative pronoun “which” is used to talk about animals, objects, places, ideas… etc.
e.g.    I want a watch which is waterproof.
ب- الضمير النسبي الغير شخصي: 
which)) هو ضمير يستخدم مع الحيوانات و الأشياء و الأماكن و الأفكار..إلخ (أي أنه ضمير غير شخصي).
مثال/ I want a watch which is waterproof
which > يعود على "watch" و "watch" يدل على (animals, objects, places, ideas… etc )،                                          -" watch" هو عنصر متقدم للضمير النسبي (which) 
C. Personal and Non-Personal Relative Pronouns
The relative pronouns “that” and “whose” are used with both personal and non-personal antecedents.
e.g.   1. There is the driver that was speeding. (“that” used with the personal antecedent “driver”)
e.g.   2. There is the car that was speeding. (“that” used with the non-personal antecedent “car”)
جـ-الضمائر النسبيّة الشخصية و الغير شخصية :
that) - whose) هي ضمائر تستخدم مع (العناصر المتقدمة التي تشير إلى الإنسان- human antecedents و مع الحيوانات                           و الأشياء و الأماكن و الأفكار)
مثال1/ There is the driver that was speeding 
that was speeding < جملة نسبيّة 
that < ضمير نسبي و استخدمناه مع عنصر متقدم شخصي يشير إلى الإنسان؛ هذا العنصر المتقدم هو (driver).
مثال2/ There is the car that was speeding
that was speeding < جملة نسبيّة
that < ضمير نسبي و استخدمناه مع عنصر متقدم غير شخصي؛ هذا العنصر المتقدم هو (car).
Note: “Whose” gives the idea of possession.
e.g.   1. The man whose car you borrowed wants to see you. (The man wants to see you. You borrowed his car.)
e.g.   2. We saw the castle whose walls were made of rocks. (We saw the castle. Its walls were made of rock.)
*ملحوظة عن الضمير النسبي (whose):
إذا أردنا التحدث عن وضع معين نستخدم الضمير النسبي (Whose).
مثال1/ The man whose car you borrowed wants to see you
whose car you borrowed < جملة نسبيّة 
whose < ضمير نسبي.
man < هو عنصر متقدم للضمير النسبي (Whose).
-استخدمنا " Whose" هنا لإعطاء فكرة عن (أن السيارة هي للرجل) < وضع معين.
-إذا أردنا فصل الجملة المعقدة نقول: 
The man wants to see you. You borrowed his car.
مثال2/ We saw the castle whose walls were made of rocks
whose walls were made of rocks < جملة نسبيّة 
whose < ضمير نسبي.
castle  < هو عنصر متقدم للضمير النسبي (Whose).
-استخدمنا " Whose" هنا لإعطاء فكرة عن (أن جدران القلعة مصنوعة من الحجر) < وضع معين.
-إذا أردنا فصل الجملة المعقدة نقول: 
We saw the castle. Its walls were made of rock.

*معلومة مهمة:
1-عند الحل لمثل هذه الأسئلة يجب تحديد ما هو عمل الضمير النسبي في الجملة.
2-الجملة النسبية دائماً تكون مُعَدَّلة في الجملة للرأس في العبارة الاسمية.
3-إذاً الجملة النسبيّة غير ضرورية في الجملة و يمكن الاستغناء عنها .
•In the following section, we will talk about the third type of subordinate clauses: adverbial clauses.
*في القسم التالي؛ سنتحدث عن النوع الثالث من الجمل التبعيّة : الجمل الظرفية .
Exercise:
Which of the subordinate clauses in each of the following sentences is a relative clause?
a. relative clause	b. not a relative clause
1. The machine which makes plastic bottles is broken.
which makes plastic bottles < وظيفتها معدِّلة                                                                                     machine < عنصر متقدم غير شخصي 
*إذاً يمكن الاستغناء عن هذه الجملة"which makes plastic bottles"لأن وجودها اختياري                                                                (أي إذا حذفناها لا تُنْقِص من معنى الجملة).
الجواب هو : a. relative clause
2. The manager is upset about what the worker told him.
what the worker told him < وظيفتها مكملة                                                                                                     manager  < فاعل  
*إذاً لا يمكن الاستغناء عن هذه الجملة"what the worker told him"لأن وجودها إجباري                                                                (أي إذا حذفناها ستُنْقِص من معنى الجملة).
الجواب هو : b. not a relative clause
3. The problem is that he didn’t oil the machine.
that he didn’t oil the machine < وظيفتها مكملة                                                                                            problem  < مبتدأ   
*إذاً لا يمكن الاستغناء عن هذه الجملة"that he didn’t oil the machine"لأن وجودها إجباري                                                                (أي إذا حذفناها ستُنْقِص من معنى الجملة).
الجواب هو : b. not a relative clause

4. The worker that forgot to oil the machine is speaking with the manager.
that forgot to oil the machine < وظيفتها معدِّلة                                                                                                  machine < عنصر متقدم غير شخصي 
*إذاً يمكن الاستغناء عن هذه الجملة"that forgot to oil the machine"لأن وجودها اختياري                                                                (أي إذا حذفناها لا تُنْقِص من معنى الجملة).
الجواب هو : a. relative clause
5. They called a technician who could fix the machine.
who could fix the machine < وظيفتها معدِّلة                                                                                                  technician  < عنصر متقدم شخصي يشير إلى الإنسان   
*إذاً يمكن الاستغناء عن هذه الجملة"who could fix the machine"لأن وجودها اختياري                                                                (أي إذا حذفناها لا تُنْقِص من معنى الجملة).
الجواب هو : a. relative clause
Adverbial Clauses
3. Adverbial Clauses:
Similar to adverbs and adverb phrases, adverbial clauses allow us to talk about time, place and manner.
3- الجملة الظرفية : 
هذا النوع شبيه بالظروف و العبارات الظرفية تماماً ، الجمل الظرفية تسمح لنا بالحديث عن الزمن و المكان و الأسلوب أو السلوك.
e.g.        I met Ahmed in 2005. (adverbial phrase of time)
              I met Ahmed when I was travelling. (adverbial clause of time.)
              He parked his car here. (adverb of place)
              He parked his car where there is a parking sign. (adverbial clause of place)
              He drives carefully. (adverb of manner)
              He drives as his father did. (adverbial clause of manner)
مثال/* I met Ahmed in 2005 
in 2005 < هي عبارة ظرفية تدلنا على الزمان.
I met Ahmed when I was travelling *
when I was travelling < هي جملة تبعيّة؛ نوعها: جملة ظرفية تدلنا على الزمان (وهي تابع).
He parked his car here * 
here < هي عبارة ظرفية تدلنا على المكان.
He parked his car where there is a parking sign *
where there is a parking sign < هي جملة تبعيّة؛ نوعها: جملة ظرفية تدلنا على المكان (وهي تابع).

He drives carefully * 
carefully  < هي ظرف أو حال يدلنا على أسلوب أو سلوك .
He drives as his father did *
as his father did < هي جملة تبعيّة؛ نوعها: جملة ظرفية تدلنا على أسلوب أو سلوك (وهي تابع).
Note: The words “when”, “where” and “as” in the previous sentences are subordinate conjunctions.
*ملحوظة: الكلمات" when- where- as" في الجمل السابقة عبارة عن حروف عطف تبعيّة.
Adverbial clauses also have functions similar to adverbs and adverb phrases. For example, the adverbial clause in the following sentence is an adjunct:
e.g.     I met Ahmed when I was travelling. (The adverbial clause “when I was travelling” is an adjunct.)
الجمل الظرفية لديها وظائف شبيهة للظروف و العبارات الظرفية.مثل/ الجملة النسبيّة في الجملة التالية وظيفتها"تابعة":
I met Ahmed when I was travelling
when I was travelling < جملة نسبيّة ظرفيّة وظيفتها (تابع)
Compare: I met Ahmed in 2005. (The adverbial phrase “in 2005” is an adjunct.)
مقارنة :
I met Ahmed in 2005
in 2005 < هي عبارة ظرفية تدلنا على الزمان، ووظيفتها : تابع.
• In the next section, we will look briefly at examples of some other types of subordinate adverbial clauses.
*في القسم التالي؛ سنلقي نظرة باختصار على أمثلة لبعض الأنواع أخرى للجمل التبعيّة الظرفية.


Other Adverbial 
Subordinate Clauses
Other Adverbial Subordinate Clauses :
4. Other Adverbial Subordinate Clauses
Please return my book if you finish reading it. (Conditional Clause)
Ahmed is quicker than I am. (Comparison Clause)
I couldn’t open the door because I used the wrong key. (Reason Clause)
He closed the windows so that he wouldn’t hear the noise outside. (Purpose Clause)
جمل تبعيّة ظرفية أخرى:
4- جمل تبعيّة ظرفية أخرى:
1-الجملة الشرطيّة - Conditional Clause :   < (if)
وصف حاله ، مثال/ Please return my book if you finish reading it
2-الجملة التفضيلية (التشبيهية) -  Comparison Clause: < (than)
مقارنة بين شيئين ، مثال/ Ahmed is quicker than I am
3-الجملة المنطقية (السببية) - Reason Clause :  < (because)
توضيح سبب عمل شيء ما ، مثال/ I couldn’t open the door because I used the wrong key
4-الجملة الغرضية - Purpose Clause : < (so that)
مثال/ He closed the windows so that he wouldn’t hear the noise outside
*ملحوظة: 
-الجمل الظرفية و الجمل التبعيّة الظرفية الأخرى:
 (
ندعوهم بحروف العطف التبعيّة " 
subordinate conjunctions
" 
)- when, where, as 
-if, than, because, so that

** ملاحظه : كما تعرفون لدينا في اللغة العربية ضمائر متصلة و منفصلة ، كذلك لدينا في اللغة الانجليزية متصلة و منفصلة (مثال على الضمائر المتصلة" Personal Relative Pronouns" معناها الضمائر الشخصية المتصلة) أنا شرحتها هنا على أساس إنها "الضمائر النسبيّة الشخصية". 
أي أن (Relative Clauses) معناها: الجمل النسبيّة أو الجمل الموصولة .
ذكيه ميه بالميه ^_^
